CGreater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohiop 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, April 18, 2023 in the Board
Room of the Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the
listed items and such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon.
This meeting will be live streamed on RTA’s Board Page www.RideRTA conv/board via the
meeting date for staff and members of the public. Members of the public may attend in person.

Based on Centers for Disease Control ("CDC") guidance to avoid crowded places whare you
cannot stay six fest away from others and Ohio Department of Public Health advice regarding
congregating and social distancing, as well as RTA's interest in protecting community and
employee health and safety, RTA Board Room and Meeating Room 1 capacity is limited to thirty-
six (36) people to allow for soctal distancing. To accommaodate members of the public, RTA will
limit the number of staff parmitted in the Board Room. All persons entering RTA's Main Office
Building (“MOB") at 1240 West 6 Street are required to maintain a distance of six feet or more
from other individuals who are not members of their family or household.

As a result of a federal court order on April 18, 2022, the CDC's January 29, 2021 order
requiring masks on public transportation conveyances and at transportation hubs is no longer in
effect. The CDC continues to recommend that people wear masks in indoor public
transportation settings at this time. As a result, GCRTA recommends, but will not require, that
members of the public wear & mask/face covering.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA's website at (www ridderta comi/beard), on RTA’s
Facebook page, and RTA's Twitter page.

9:00 AM. Board of Trustees Meeting -~ agenda attached

P T A

Ir(dia L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

BT tab
Attachment

Scan this QR code to access the meeting schedule, live streams and meeting materials.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, April 18, 2023

9:00 a.m.

Call to order

Roll Call

Certification regarding notice of meeting
Approval of meeting minutes:

a. March 21, 2023 Board Meeting minutes
b. March 21, 2023 Annual Meeting minutes

Public comments {2 minutes) on agenda items:
a. In person
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment limit) Commants will be forwarded to Board and

staff
Board Governance Committae report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
¢  Chair; Ms, LLauren R. Weich

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
s Chair: Mayor Anthony D, Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
«  Chair: Mayor Paul A. Koomar

External and Stakehoider Relations and Advocacy Commitiee report
s Chair, Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
. Board Liaison: Ms. Valarie J. McCall

Ad Hoc Committee reports:
¢« Ad Hoc Paratransit Cornmittee — President Charles P. Lucas, Chair
+«  Ad Hoc Technology Committee — Ms, Luz Pellot, Chair
tntraduction of new employees and announcement of promotions

Intraduction of resolutions:



RTA Board of Trustees

April 18, 2023
Page 2

2023-25 — Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority who retired during the first quarter of
2023

2023-26 — Authorizing Contract No. 2021-125 with Siemens Mobility, Inc.
for the design, manufacture and delivery of up to twenty-four (24) high
floor light rail vehicles, spare parts, tooling and training in an amount not
to exceed $163,820,115.00 with options fo procure up to thirty-six (36)
additional high floor light rail vehicles, spare parts, tooling, and training, to
be exercised over the seven (7) year term of the contract (RTA
Development Fund, Fleet Management Department budget)

2023-27 -~ Authorizing Contract No. 2022-128 with Loram Maintenance of
Way, Inc. to provide rail grinding services for a total contract amount not
to exceed $1,160,500.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget)

2023-28 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-142 with U3 insurance
Services LLC to provide casualty insurance broker services for a period of
three years in an amount not to exceed $300,000.00, with two, one-year
options in an amount not to exceed $100,000.00 for each option year, for
a total contract amount not to excesd $500,000.00 (insurance Fund, Risk
Management Department budget)

2023-29 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-9 with Cook Paving &
Construction Co., Inc. for Project 19.45 ~ Centrai Rail Maintenance
Facility Rail Shop Pit Drains in an amount not to exceed $475,800.00
{RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Davelopment
Department budget)

2023-30 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-11 with White Associates, Inc.
for the furnishing of remanufactured air dryers, as specified and as
required, for a period of one year in an amount not to exceed
$175,500.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget)

2023-31 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-019 with Railworks Track
Services LLC for Project 19.68 — Waterfront Line Platform and Track
Repairs, as specified, in an amount not to exceed $1,047,832.00 (RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Davelopment Department

budget)

2023-32 - Authorizing Contract No. 2023-056 with Trapeze Software
Group, Inc. DBA Vontas to provide TransitMaster Software Cloud Hosting
Services, including implementation, for a period of three years in an
amount not to exceed $760,101.00 (General Fund, Information
Technology Department budget)



RTA Board of Trustees
April 18, 2023

Page 3

15.

16.
17.
18.
18.

20

21

22,

23.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

a. General Fund Revenue — status as of March 31, 2023 versus 2022 actuals

b. General Fund Revenue — status as of March 31, 2023 versus the 2023
budget

c. Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2023, actual receipts
through April 2023

d. Inventory of Treasury Investments as of March 31, 2023

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis) as

e.
of March 31, 2023

f.  Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through March 31, 2023

d. Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of March, 2023

h.  Composition of Investment Portfolio as of March 31, 2023

i.

Banking and Financial Relationships as of March 31, 2023

General Manager's Report
President's Report

Old Business

New Business

Public comments (2 minutes) on public transit related items:

a. In person
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments wili be forwarded to Board and

staff

Executive Session Reguested
=« To enable the Board to conference with GCRTA attorneys for information-

gathering, fact-finding, and to receive legal advice.

The next regular Board meeting is scheduied for Tuesday, May 16, 2023 in the
Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's Board page
(wrsd Rida B TA somfboary) by clicking the meeting date.  The public is welcome
to attend in person.

Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Annual Meeting
8:08 am., March 21, 2023
Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Moss (Vice Chair), Biasiotta, McCall, Pellot, Weiss, Weich

Not present: Joyce, Koomar

Staff: Birdsong Terry, Burney, Caver, Coffey, Dangelo, Ferraro, Fields, Fleig, Freilich, Garofoli,
Gautam, Jones, Kirkland, Miller, Mothes, Schipper, Talley, Walker-Minor

Public: Gibbons, Loh, Martin, Moarris, Cobhens
The meeting was called to order at 9:06 am. There were seven (7) board members present,

The Secratary advised that notice of this meeting had been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usual notification had been given the news media and other
interested persons, and that all requirements of the OChio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this
Board regarding notice of meeting had been complied with.

Ms. Welch, Chair of the Nominating Committee conducted the election. The Nominating Committee
received one letter of interest frorm Rev. Charles P, Lucas for the Office of President and one letter of
interest from Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss for the Office of Vice President. Ms. Welch asked if there wera

any additional nominations. There were nonhe.

Nominations and election for the Office of President

Ms. Welch asked for a motion and second to approve Rev, Lucas as President. It was moved by

Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous vote. Rev. Lucas thanked the
Board for placing him in the position. He mentioned some of the projects under his leadership like the
Transit Ambassadors, Code Book Updates and no layoffs. He thanked the staff for their help. This
will be his last year as President which is line with the changes made to the Bylaws,

Narminations and election for the Office of Vice President

Ms. Welch asked for a motion and second to approve Ms. Moss as Vice President. It was moved by
Ms. Peliot, seconded by Mayor Biasiotta and approved by unanimous vote. Ms, Moss thanked the
Nominating Committee, Board members and staff.

This meeting adjourned at 9:14 a.m.

Prasident

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurgr



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:14 a.m. March 21, 2023
Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Moss (Vice Chair), Biasiotta, McCall, Pellot, Weiss, Weich
Not present: Joyce, Koomar

Staff: Birdsong Terry, Burney, Caver, Coffey, Dangelo, Ferraro, Fields, Fleig, Freilich, Garofoli,
Gautam, Jones, Kirkland, Miller, Mothes, Schipper, Talley, Walker-Minor

Public: Gibbons, Loh, Martin, Morris, Cobhens

The meeting was called to order at 8:14 am. There were seven (7) board members present.

It was advised that notice of this meeting had been posted more than twenty-four hours in advance of
the meeting, that the usual notification had been given the news media and other interested persons,

and that all requiremenits of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board regarding
notice of meeting had been complied with.

Minutes

President Lucas stated that the minutes from the February 28, 2023 Board Meeting had been
previously distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections.
There were no corrections. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda iterms

1. Chris Martin, Chair of Clevelanders for Public Transit - CPT has not received any updates on
the Paratransit scheduling website, It is not ADA compliant. RTA told him they cannot update
it because it is operated by Trapeze.

2. Aijrric Stewart — The survey line is still not working properly. He restated his suggestions for
route 15A, His route proposal improves access to retail, schools, colleges, hospitals and
libraries.

Commitiee Reports

There were no reports,

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

There were no reports.

Ad Hoc Committee Reports

There were no reports.



RTA Board of Trustees
March 21, 2023

Page 2 of 5

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

New Hires:

DN A LN

Promatiatis:

Tasha Jones — Operator
Ramaris Crosby - QOperator
Brenee Rice —~ Operator
Nardica Wells — Operator
Aaliyah Haamid — Operator
Allen Moss - Operator
Deandre Stephens — Qperator
Dontez Andersan - Operator
Lee Ward - Laborer

1. Alsindor Pittman - Service Quality Supervisor
2. Ricky Williams — Supervisor Cross Trained

Executive Session Requested

9:23 a.m. - President Lucas asked for a motion and second to consider the appaintment, employment,
dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, compensation of a public employee or official. It was
moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Mayor Biasiotta. The roll was called. There were seven (7) ayes
and none opposed.

10:27 a.m. — It was moved by Ms. Pellot, seconded by Ms. McCall to come ouf of executive session,
The roll was called. There were seven (7) ayes and none opposed.

introduction of Resolutions:

A. 2023- 18 - Authorizing Contract No. 2022-088 with UKG, Inc. to provide an applicant

tracklng system for a three-year period in a total contract amount not {o exceed
$347,000.00 (General Fund, Management Information Services Department budget),
the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, secondad by Mayor Biasiotta and
approved by unanimous vote.

2023-19 — Autherizing Contract No. 2023-003 with CPC Industries, Inc. for the
furnishing of heavy-duty cleaner/degreaser, as specified and as required, for a period
of two (2) years, in an amount not to exceed $161,000.00 (General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Pellot,
seconded by Mayor Biasiotta and approved by unanimous vote,

Ms. Moss thanked Procurement for their work in receiving more than one bid for a
number of the resolutions.

2023-20 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-012 with Transit Sourcing Services, Inc. for
the procurement of 28-inch steel wheels for heavy rail vehicles in an amount not to
exceed $458,000.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget), the
adoption of which was moved by Ms, Welch, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by
unanimous vote.

2023-21 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-014 with Northeast Lubricants LTD. for the
furnishing of transmission fluid, as specified and as required, for a period of one (1)



RTA Board of Trustees
March 21, 2023
Page 3 of 5

year in an amount not to exceed $112,275.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by
Ms. Peliot and approved by unanimous vate.

E. 2023-22 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-138 with HDR Engineering, Inc. for Project
19.46 — On-Calt Architect/Engineer Services - 2022 in an amount not to exceed
$300,000.00 for a period of 24 months (RTA Capital and/or Development Funds,
Engineering & Project Development Depariment budget), The adoption of which was
moved by Ms. Peliot, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by unanimous vote,

F. 2023-23 - Approving a new three-year collective bargaining agreement covering
conditions of emplioyment with the Fraternal Order of Police/Ohio Labor Council, Inc.,

the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Mayor Biasiotta and
approved by unanimous vole,

Another resolution will be added to the agenda once it is finalized.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the report.
The annual inflation rate in the U.S. increased from 2.5% in January 2020 to 9.1% in June 2022.
Since June 2022, the rate has been falling. At the end of February 2023, it was down to 6%. itis
expected to continue to fall in 2023, The FOMC has raised interest rates in December to the highest
level in 15 years to fight inflation. They increased rates in February 2023 to 4.75%. The U.8.
unemployment rate dropped from 3.5% in December 2022 to 3.4% in January 2023, February 2023
numbers are not currently available., Ohio unemployment dropped from 4.1% in December 2022 to
4% in January 2023. Cuyahoga County unemployment rose from 3.4% in December 2022 to 4.3% in
January 2023, The MSA statistical information is currently not available. It will be provided at the

next meeting.

YTD ridership through March 2023 is 3.32 million. This is a 34% decline from pre-COVID lavels.
February 2023 ridership was 28.2% above February 2022, Pre-COVID YTD passenger fares for
March 2019 was $5.5 million. This is a 20% decline as of March 2023. February 2023 passenger
fare revenue was 4.2% below February 2022, YTD passenger fares were 3.8% above 2022 leveals,
The difference in declining ridership compared to declining passenger fare is due to the U-pass and
CMSD agreements that are back to normal levels. A peer comparison of passenger fares shows RTA
is better than four of its peers. Only MTA in Baltimore, MD shows better recovery results. RTA’s 40%
decline in 2020 shows recovery. A passenger fare comparison with larger agencies shows RTA is
ahead of Washington (WMATA), Boston (MBTA), Philadelphia (SEPTA) and New York City (NYCT).

March 2023 sales tax which is based on December 2022 activity was 7.4% higher than March 2022
YTD it is 6.6% higher than 2022 levels. Nineteen of the twenty-three categories were positive in
March 2023. Comparing March 2023 to March 2022, motor vehicles and watercraft were 15.5%
higher. Online sales were 21.4% higher, Regular and statewide sales were 7.4% higher. March
2023 collections represent the Christmas sales from 2022, This activity was higher than pre-COVID
levels of 2019, A significant portion of that increase is based on higher inflation rather than the
economy. Mayor Weiss requested the peer comparison be presented each month.

General Manager/CEQ Report

India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEQ gave the report. Mayor Weiss was sworn in for a
second term on March 7. He is the Chair of the Compensation Committee and an appointee of the



RTA Board of Trustees
March 21, 2023
Page 4 of 5

Cuyahoga County Mayors and City Managers. Ms. Birdsong Terry gave testimony before the Ohio
Senate Transportation Committee on March 8 in Columbus, Ohio. Mr. Schipper and Ms. Walker
Minor gave testimony the week before. She spoke on several state funding projects such as
replacement vehicles, microtransit, Baby on Board and training and workforce development.

Ms._ Birdsong Terry, Teresa Muti and Chief Jones spoke on March 9 for International Women's Day in
partnership with MTA and EWT. The theme was "Breaking Glass Ceilings” Several RTA staff and
Board Members attended the APTA Legislative Conference in Washington, D.C. March 12-14. The
conference focused on the importance of federal legislation, advancing equity and safety. Staff
visited with key legislators. Several staff members attended the Conference of Minority
Transportation Officials (COMTO) 12 Annual Women Who Move the Nation Awards Ceremony on
March 15 in D.C. Ms. Birdsong Terry testified before the U.S. Senate Committee on Banking,
Housing and Urban Affairs on March 16 in D.C. She spoke about infrastructure, safety, operations,
and workforce development.

A $4M request for Community Project Funding was made to Representative Shontel Brown and a
$4M request for Congressionally Directed Spending was made to Senator Sherrod Brown for Light
Rail Track Reconstruction. A $1.35M request for Congressionally Directed Spending was made to
Senator Sherrod Brown for Bridges to Opportunity Workforce Development Project. Ridership was
lower than expected for St. Patrick's Day. Transit Police patrolled the stations and bus stops. Staff
volunteered at the rail stations. Ms. Birdsong Terry (virtual), Teresa Muti and Kay Sutula will
participate in a Women In Transit Confarance on March 31 in Rochester, NY. GCRTA staff will
volunteer with the Cleveland Public Library Ride & Read event on April 12 from 3-6 p.m. at various
RTA stations. Free books will be distributed.

Intreduction of Additional Resolution

Resolution 2023-24 was added to the agenda:

2023-24 - Authorizing a salary adjustment for Anthony A. Garofoli, Executive Director of Internal
Audit, the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms. McCall. Ms. Moss stated

that she believes the Internat Audit Director should be a Grade 1186, like his peers. President Lucas
added that there will be additional discussion about this matter. The roll was called, There were six

(6) ayes and one oppaosition from Ms. Moss. It passed.

President's Report

As a result of his trip to the APTA Legislative Conference, he will be meeting with the head of
paratransit. He also observed some construction and bus issues.

Public Comments - public transit related items

1. Carlata Santouri — She thanked RTA for the new seats. The mesh on the buses makes it hard
to see out the windows, Operators don't lower the ramp for shopping carts and walkers.
Buses have passed her up (#11 and #9 and #14) downtown on Superior Avenue, Transit
Police needs to enforce non-smaking on RTA property. Operators should tell customers not to
put their feet on the seats.

2. Chiis Martin - CPT requested the Board put a tax levy on the 2023 General Election ballot.
CPT has asked RTA to seek new funding since 2018, In 2018, former trustee, Mayor Elkins
was not supported in his motion to place a levy on the ballot. Former Board President Mayor
Clough said RTA would put a tax levy on the ballot by 2019. As a result of Mayor Elkins’



RTA Board of Trusteas
March 21, 2023
Page 5of b

mation, RTA did a presentation on RTA service, who uses the service, funding and what it
would take to find additional local funding. CPT recommends the presentation be updated for
the May Board Meeting. It should include a menu of service expansion that could be
implemented with new funding. CPT is available to assist with the content of the presentation.

Airric Stewart — He said the #50 should stant at Marymount Hospital. This will give greater
access to customers. It will get to 93™ in Chester faster. The #48 could be an hourly bus. He
complained about the two-minute public comment limit. President Lucas said Josl! Frieilich is
avaitable to provide feedback about route suggestions.

Shalida Dobbins (webform comment) - Even though GCRTA doesn't own the paratransit
scheduling website they still have to hold their vendors accountable for not being accessible
for the paratransit riders - 2024 is too long to wait for the vendor to update the website, riders
can't use it now. The Board should demand the vendor to get it updated sooner or work with a

better vendor,

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is schaeduled for Tuesday, April 18, 2023, in the Board Room of the
Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meeting will
be live streamed on RTA’s Board page (www.RideRTA. com/board) by selecting the meeting date.
The public is welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:06 a.m.

Attest:

President

Secretary-Treasurer



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-25

EXPRESSING CONGRATULATIONS TO THE EMPLOYEES OF THE
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY WHO RETIRED
DURING THE FIRST QUARTER QF 2023

WHEREAS, the following employees retired from the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority during the first quarter of 2023 after numerous years of dedicated public
service:

Name Title Work Location
Cynthia Dismuke Upholster Central Bus Maint,
Michaet Thom Equipment Maintainer Triskett

Sonya Knight Material Handler/Stock Clerk Central Bus Maint.
Jefirey Pawluk Heating/Air Con Mechanic Hayden

Myron Hite Jr, Signal Technician Central Sve B
David Pfeiffer Manager of Gen Accounting Main Office
Kathryne Crenshaw-Bolton  Administrative Assistant Main Office

Carl Repenning Rail Operator Rail Operators
Howard Waugaman 1l Bus Operator Triskett

Frank Bramley Electric Equipment Technician Central Bus Maint.
Gary Bryson Jr. Hostler Haydean

Trent A. Garrett Material Handler/Stock Clerk Central Bus Maint.
Darrell Flowers Supervisor Cross Trained Main Office
Sherrill Hamilton Paratransit Operator Paratransit Ops.
Joe Horowski Jr. Inventory Auditor/Analyst Central Bus Maint,

WHEREAS, these retirees faithfully gave of their skills, time and talents to provide high
guality public transportation to the community; and

WHEREAS, these retirees did miuch to contribute to the gquality of life in Greater
Cleveland by providing much-needed public transit service and protecting our valuable
environment; and

WHEREAS, the retirees’ outstanding diligence in the performance of their jobs was of
immeasurable value to both riders and residents of Cuyahoga County; and

WHEREAS, these retirees represent hundreds of years of invaluable public transit
experience, and they will be missed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the sincere congratulations and gratitude of the Board of Trustees is
hereby extended to each of the above named employees on the occasion of their retirement
from the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.

Section 2. That the members of the Board of Trustees offer their best wishes o the
retirees for continued success and happiness, which they so richly deserve.



Reasotution No. 2023-25
Page 2

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: April 18, 2023

President

Attest;

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIFTION: Resolution No.:
2023-26
CONTRACT: DESIGN, MANUFACTURE AND DELIVERY OF UP TO Date:
TWENTY-FOUR (24) HIGH FLOOR LIGHT RAIL April 13, 2023
VEHICLES, SPARE PARTS, TOOLING, AND TRAINING, —
WITH AN OPTION TO PROCURE UP TO THIRTY-SIX Initiator: Fleet
(36) ADDITIONAL HIGH FLOOR LIGHT RAIL VEHICLES | Management
TO BE EXERCISED WITHIN SEVEN (7) YEARS OF Department

VENDOR:  SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC.

AMOUNT:  NTE $163,920,115.00

CONTRACT SIGNATURE

ACTION REQUEST:
& Approval [ Review/Comment 1 Information Only 1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE/SCOPFE: This resolution will authorize the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Autharity (“Authority”) to enter into a contract for the design, manufacture and delivery of up to
twenty-four (24) high floor light rail vehicles ("LRV"), spare parts, tooling, and training, with
options to purchase up to thirty-six (36) additional LRVs, spare parts, tooling, and training fo be
delivered over the seven (7) year term of the contract.

DESCRIPTIONAUSTIFICATION: The Authority currently operates a fleet of 40 heavy rail
vehicles that service the Red Line and 22 light rail vehicles that service the Blue, Green and
Waterfrot Lines. The FTA identifies the default useful life benchmark for both heavy and light
rail vehicles {0 be 31 years, The existing heavy rail vehicle fleet began service in 1984 (39
years ago). The existing light rail vehicle fleet began service in 1981 (42 years ago). Both
fleets have had some level of mid-life rehabilitation but have exceaded the useful life
benchmarks for rail cars in their respective categories. To provide safe, reliable and cost-
effective service, GCRTA needs to replace its entire fleet of rail vehicles,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposal (“RFP") was posted on the
Authority's procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. One hundred twenty-
five (125) interested parties downloaded the solicitation. One (1) responsive proposal was
received on March 9, 2022, In accordance with established Procurement Department policies
and procedures, two panels of Authority employees were established to review the proposal: a
technical evaluation panel and a cost evaluation panel. The Best and Final Offer was reviewed
collectively by the panel members. Numerous negotiation meetings took place to resolve
technical specifications and deviations and to negotiate scope, contract terms and price.

The proposal of Siemens Mobility, Inc. to provide up to twenty-four (24) LRVs, spare parts,
tooling, and training, for a total amount not to exceed $163,920,115.00, with options to
purchase up to thirty-six (36) additional LRVs, spare parts, tooling, and training to be
exercised within seven (7) years of contract signature, has been determined by the
Procurement Department 1o be the most advantageous to the Authority, with cost and all
other factors taken into consideration. Contract award is contingent upon the successful
review of all costs associated with this procurement, compliance with Pre-Award/Buy
America Audit requirements and Federal Transit Administration approval of applicable

grants.



Staff Summary & Comments

2023-26

Rail Car Replacement
Page 2

4.0

50

6.0

7.0

8.0

8.0

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUNL: Per federal reguiations, the Office of Business
Development does not conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish goals on procurements
involving the purchase of Transit Motor Vehicles.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the RTA Development Fund,
Fleet Management Department budget, including but not limited to Rolling Stock Reserve
Funds as local match and the following: Capital Grants from the Federal Transit Administration
(‘FTA") FFY 2020-FFY 2023 and pending Rail Vehicle Reptacement program grant awards in
an amount not to exceed $90,045,115.00; Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency
(NOACA) - Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) awards in an amount not to exceed
$12,000,000.00; Ohio Department of Transportation - Ohio Transit Parthership Program
(OTP2) grants in an amount not to exceed $25,625,000.00; U.S. Department of Transportation
{USDOT) - Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage Development (FFY 2020) grant in an
armount not to exceed $18,750,000.00; USDOT ~ Congressionally Directed Spending award in
an amount not to exceed $6,250,000.00; USDOT - Community Project Funding grant in an
amount not to exceed $6,250,000.00; and 100% local funds in an armount not to excead
$5,000,000.00 for a total contract amount not to exceed $163,920,115.00 ($106,6386,092.00
represents 65% federal funds, $21,400,000.00 represents 13% state funds and
$35,884,023.00 represents 22% local funds and local match). This resolution is contingent
upon FTA approval of pending Rail Vehicle Replacament Program grant awards (Infrastructure
Investment & Jobs Act) and pending grant revisions.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would detay the ability of the
Authority to purchase replacement rail cars, which would impact the Authority's ability to

provide safe and reliable rail transportation.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed and recommended by the Board of
Trustees at the April 4, 2023 Committee of the Whole meeting. It was also discussed by the
Board of Trustees at the April 10, 2023 Committee of the Whole meeting. It is recommended
that the offer of Siemens Mobility, Inc. be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter info a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements,

‘“\»




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-26

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2021-125 WITH SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC.
FOR THE DESIGN, MANUFACTURE AND DELIVERY OF UP TO TWENTY-
FOUR (24) HIGH FLOOR LIGHT RAIL VEHICLES, SPARE PARTS, TOOLING
AND TRAINING IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $163,920,115.00 WITH
OPTIONS TO PROCURE UP TO THIRTY-3{X (36) ADDITIONAL HiGH FLOOR
LIGHT RAIL VEHICLES, SPARE PARTS, TOOLING, AND TRAINING, TO BE
EXERCISED OVER THE SEVEN (7) YEAR TERM OF THE CONTRACT (RTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) currently
operates a fleet of 40 heavy rail vehicles on the Red Line and 29 light rail vehicles along the
Blue, Green and Waterfront Lines; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has identified the need to replace both the heavy and light rail
fleet of rail cars which have exceeded their useful life; and

WHEREAS, on March 2, 2020, the Authority engaged a consultant, LTK Engineering
Services to study the heavy and light rail markets, assist in preparing a rail car procurement
salicitation and provide consulling services throughout the term of the rall car purchase contract;
and

WHEREAS, the Authority issued its first Request for Proposals on February 22, 2021,
but received no responsive proposals; and

WHEREAS, the Authority engaged car builders and rail owners to identify changes to
the specifications which could iead to a responsive proposal for a combined rail fleet; and

WHEREAS, the Authority issued a new Request for Proposals on October 11, 2021 and
received one (1) responsive proposal from Siemens Mobility, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, the offer of Siemens Mobility, Inc., located at 7464 French Road,
Sacramento, CA 85828, to design, manufacture and deliver up to twenty-four (24) high floor
light rail vehicies, spare parts, tooling, and training, with options to procure up to an additional
thirty-six (38) high floor light rail vehicles, spare parts, tooling, and training to be delivered over
the seven (7) year term of the contract was received on March 9, 2022; and

WHEREAS, a team of Authority employees across multiple departments, including Fleet
Management, Fleet Engineering, Rail, Power & Way, Operations, Engineering, Office of
Management and Budget, Internal Audit, Procurement, and Legal, padicipated in nearly one
year of negotiations with Siemens Mobility, Inc. in order to achieve technical specifications and
a price that is advantageous o the Authority; and

WHEREAS, Siemens Mobility, Inc. has offered to provide up to twenty-four (24) high
floor light rail vehicles, spare parts, tooling, and training, for a total negotiated contract amount
not to exceed $163,020,115.00 and has also agreed to provide options for up to thirty-six (36)
additional high floor light rail vehicles, spare paris, tooling, and training at the same negotiated
price per car adjusted for inflation and re-tooling costs at the time the options are exercised; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Siemens
Mohbility, Inc., as negotiated, to be the most advantageous to the Authority, cost and other
factors considered, and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees,



Resolution No. 2023-26
Page 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Siemens Mobility, Inc. to design, manufacture and deliver up
to twenty-four {24) high floor light rail vehicles, spare paris, tooling, and training, with options to
procure up to an additional thirty-six (36) high floor light rail vehicles, spare parts, tooling, and
training to be delivered over the seven (7) year term of the contract, be and the same is heraby

accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with Siemens Mobility, inc. to design, manufacture and
deliver up to twenty-four (24) high floor light rail vehicles, spare parts, tooling, and training, with
options to procure up to an additional thirty-six (36) high fioor light rail vehicles, spare parts,
tooling, and training to be delivered over the seven (7) year term of the contract.

Section 3. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to purchase up to twenty-four (24) high floor light rail vehicles coaches, spare parts,
tooling, and training, contingent upon Federal Transit Administration approval of eligible grants.

Section 4. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may exercise options,
subject to avaitable funding and formal Board of Trustee approval, for up to thirty-six (36)
additional LRVs and related spare parts, tooling and training, based on the negotiated purchase
price of the year the options are exercised.

Section 5. That this contract shall be payable from RTA Development Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, including but not limited to Rolling Stock Reserve Funds as
local match and the following: Capital Grants from the Federal Transit Administration (“FTA™
FFY 2020-FFY 2023 and pending Rail Vehicle Replacement program grant awards in an
amount not to exceed $90,045,115.00; Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency
(NOACA) - Surface Transportation Block Grant (ST8G) awards in an amount not to exceed
$12,000,000.00; Ohio Department of Transportation - Ohio Transit Partnership Program (OTP2)
grants in an amount not to exceed $25,625,000.00; U.5. Department of Transportation
(USDOT) - Better Uiilizing Investments to Leverage Development (FFY 2020} grant in an
amount not to exceed $18,750,000.00; USDOT ~ Congressionally Directed Spending award in
an amount not to exceed $6,250,000.00; USDOT - Community Project Funding grant in an
amount not to exceed £6,250,000.00; and 100% local funds in an amount not to exceed
$5,000,000.00 for a total contract amount not to exceed $163,920,115.00 ($106,636,092.00
represents 65% federal funds, $21,400,000.00 represents 13% state funds and $35,884,023.00
represents 22% local funds and local mateh). This resolution is contingent upon FTA approval of
pending Rail Vehicle Replacement Program grant awards (Infrastructure Investment and Jobs
Act) and pending grant revisions.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immedtately upon its adoptian.

Adopted: April 18, 2023
President

Altest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: RAIL GRINDING SERVICES 2023-27
Date;
VENDOR: LORAM MAINTENANCE OF WAY, INC., April 13, 2023
AMOUNT:  NTE $1,160,500.00 Initiator.
Engineering & Project
Development
Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval T[] Review/Comment [1 Information Only [ Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
("Authority”) to enter into a contract for rail grinding services.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/AJUSTIFICATION: The Authority is seeking a qualified firm to provide rail
grinding services to improve the rail and wheel interaction along the Red Line heavy rait track.
The Contractor will be responsible for all personnel, equipment, technical accuracy, quality,
and material necessary to perform the profiling services, in addition to stringent safety and fire
control measures.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposals (“RFP") was posted on the
Authority’s Procurement website and advertised in local newspapers. Thirteen (13) interested
parties downloaded the solicitation, and four (4) proposals were received on November 14,
2022, After evaluation by a panel of Authority employees in accordance with established
Procurement Department policies and procedures, the proposal of Loram Maintenance of
Way, In¢. to provide rail grinding services was determined to be the most advantageous to the
Authority, price and all other factors considered. After negotiations, a contract amount not to
exceed $1,160,500.00 was agreed upon. That amount is approximately 1.5% above the
estimate of $1,144,000.00 for this project.

A cost analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Departiment has determined the price
to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requiremeants have been
met. A 7% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Loram Maintenance of Way, inc.
has committed to achieving the DBE goal through the utilization of Denise's Flagging (African
American Female-owned) in the amount of $81,237.00 or 7%.

50 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to
Capital Grant OH-2016-055, for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,160,500.00
(3928,400.00 in federal funds which represents 80% of the {otal cost).

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would delay the necessary rail
grinding services heeded to extend rail life, extend rail wheel! life, eliminate defects, and reduce
power consumption.



Staff Summary & Comments 202327
Rail Grinding Services
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the April
4, 2023 Organizational, Services and Performance Monitoring Committee meeating. Itis
recommended that the offer of Loram Maintenance of Way, inc. be accepted and the
resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract.

8.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

f“/

_./H “_,...d"':_::.'j __‘_,_,--jir ':‘:%"‘“—"u
Loral e At 7
?ﬂaneral Managar GhlaﬁE*&’cutiva SeET™

Q



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-27

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-128 WITH LORAM MAINTENANCE OF
WAY, INC. TO PROVIDE RAIL GRINDING SERVICES FOR A TOTAL
CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,180,500.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT
FUND, ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) is seeking a
qualified firm to provide rail grinding services for the Red Line heavy rail track; and

WHEREAS, these rail grinding services are available from Loram Maintenance of Way,
Inc., located at 3900 Arrowhead Drive, Hamel, Minnesota; and

WHEREAS, Loram Maintenance of Way, Inc. offered to provide rail grinding services for
a total contract amount not to exceed $1,160,500.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Loram
Maintenance of Way, Inc., as negotiated, to be in the best interest of the Authority and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Loram Maintenance of Way, Inc. to provide rail grinding
services be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Loram Maintenance of Way, Inc. to provide
rail grinding services.

Section 3. That said contract will be funded through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grant OM-2016-055, for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,160,500.00 ($928,400.00 in
federal funds which represents 80% of the total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Autharity
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and alt applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Loram Maintenance of Way, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 7% DBE goal assigned
to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resclution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted. April 18, 2023

President

Altest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: CASUALTY INSURANCE BROKER 2023-28
Date:
VENDOR: US| INSURANCE SERVICES LLC April 13, 2023
initiator:

AMOUNT: AN AMOUNT NTE $300,000.00 FOR THE BASE THREE Risk Management

YEARS, AND AN AMOUNT NTE $100,000.00 FOR EACH | Department
OF THE TWO QPTION YEARS FOR A TOTAL
CONTRACT AMOUNT NTE $500,000.00

ACTION REQUEST:
& Approval (1 Review/Comment [} Information Only () Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
("Authority"} to enter into a contract for casualty insurance broker services for a period of three
years with two, one-year options for renewal.

DESCRIPTION/AJUSTIFICATION: The Authority is seeking the services of a commercial
insurance broker to assist in the areas of risk management, risk financing, and insurance
program marketing and placement.

Currentiy, the Authority carries casualty insurance coverages including rail, general, and
automabile liability at a level of $95 million in excess of a self-insured retention of $5 million
per occurrence. Other casualty insurance coverages include excess workers' compensation
coverage at a limit of $10 million and public officials/employment practices liability coverages
at a limit of $5 million. These programs are intended to provide protection of the Authority's
assets against catastrophic loss and resulting financial impact.

The insurance broker will be responsible for assisting the Authority in evaluating any
changes in exposures in the above areas, compiling submissions to underwriters, and
negotiating the most favorable terms and conditions and pricing for renewal of the above-
described insurance programs. The broker will also provide expertise and support services
in a variety of insurance and risk management related areas such as claims administration,
insurance requirements and compliance for Authority contractors, surety bonding, actuarial
analysis of loss experience, and joss forecasting.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Reguest for Proposais ("RFP") was posted on the
GCRTA Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Eleven (11) interestad
parties downloaded the solicitation and three (3) proposals were received on January 27,
2023, After evaluation by a panel of Authority employees in accordance with established
Procurement Department policies and procedures, the proposal of US| Insurance Services
LLC, to provide casualty insurance broker services, was determined to be the most
advantageous to the Authority, price and all other factors considerad, After negotiations, an
amount not to exceed $300,000.00 for a period of three years with two, one-year options in an
amount not to exceed $100,000.00 per year, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$500,000.00, was agreed upon.

USI insurance Services LLC is one of the largest commercial insurance brokerage firms in the
Uinited States. They will continue to provide the Authority with extensive experience in the
design and placement of insurance programs for large commercial accounts. US! Insurance
Services LLC has partnered with Price Forbes, a Lloyd's of London broker, which specializes
in passenger rail accounts and has experience with numerous public transit authorities.




Staff Suramary & Comments 2023-28
Casualty Insurance Broker
Page 2

4.0

5.0
6.0

7.0

8.0

8.0

A cost analysis has been performed, and the offer of US| Insurance Services LLC has been
determined by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 10% DBE goal was established for this procurement. USI Insurance Services LLC has
committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the wlilization of Rutledge Group,
tne. (African American male-owned) in the amount of $50,000.00 or 10%,

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract will be funded through the Insurance Fund, Risk
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $300,000.00 for the base three
years, and in an amount not to exceed $100,000.00 for each of the two option years, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $500,000.00. This is approximately 10% below the budgeted
amount for these services.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would delay the identification of the
Authority’s casualty insurance needs, risking the Authority not having proper excess liability,
public official, and workers’ compensation coverages.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the April
4, 2023 Audit, Safety Compliance, and Real Estate Committee meeting. It is recommended
that the offer of US] Insurance Services LLC be accepted and the resolution passed
authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and cerified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

,.-ﬂ*"j

e d e Yy

[General Manager, Ch:ef-E“FcecuEvé’_Oﬁice?




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-28

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-142 WITH US| INSURANCE SERVICES
LG TO PROVIDE CASUALTY INSURANCE BROKER SERVICES FOR A
PERIOD OF THREE YEARS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $300,000.00,
WITH TWQ, ONE-YEAR OPTIONS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$100,000.00 FOR EACH OPTION YEAR, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $500,000.00 (INSURANCE FUND, RISK MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) is seeking the
services of a commaercial insurance broker in the areas of casualty risk assessment, funding,
and insurance placement and support; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of USI insurance Services LLC, located at 575 Market Street,
Suite 3750, San Francisco, California 94105, to provide casualty insurance broker services, was
received on January 27, 2023 for a three-year period with two, one-year options for renewal;
and

WHEREAS, afier negotiations, US| Insurance Services LLC offered to provide casualty
insurance broker services in an amount not to exceed $300,000.00 for the base three years,
and in an amount not to exceed $100,000.00 for each of the two option years, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $500,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the CEQ, General Manager/Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of US|
Insurance Services LLC, as negotiated, to be in the best interest of the Authority and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio;

Section 1. That the offer of US! Insurance Services LLC to provide casualty insurance
broker services for a period of three years with two, one-year options be and the same is hereby

accepted,

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with US1 Insurance Services LIL.C to provide
casualty insurance broker services for a period of three years, with the authority to exercise
each of the two option year renewals,

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the Insurance Fund, Risk
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $300,000.00 for the base three
years, and in an amount not to exceed $100,000.00 for each of the two option years, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $500,000.00.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upoen future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.



Resolution No. 2023-28
FPage 2

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regienal Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that US! Insurance Services LLC will attempt to exceed the 10% minimum
DBE goatl assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this rescolution shall bacome effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: April 18, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Greater Claveland Interaffice Mamo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Rev. Charles P. Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong Terry e
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer (1
Date: April 13, 2023
Subject: Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Prime Contractor for

April 18, 2023 Board meeting

Please be advised the following resolution involving a DBE firm as the prime contractor will be
presented at the April 18, 2023 Board meeting.

¥ Authorizing Contract No. 2023-9 with the Cook Paving & Construction Co., Inc. to
provide construction services for Contract No. 2023-9 — CRMF Rail Ship Pit Drains

If you have any questions please feel free to contact me. You can also contact Carl Kirkland,
Director of Office of Business Development directly at (216)-356-3128.

CCIBT.CKdb



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authaority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 19.45 — CENTRAL RAIL MAINTENANCE 2023-29
FACILITY RAIL SHOP PIT DRAINS Date:
April 13, 2023
VENDOR: COOK PAVING & CONSTRUCTION CO,, INC. Initiator: Engineering
& Project
AMOUNT: NTE $475,900.00 Development
‘ Department
ACTION REQUEST:
# Approval [ Review/Comment [ [nformation Only [ Other

1.0  PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
("Authority”) to enter into a contract providing construction services to the Central Rail
Maintenance Facility rail shop pit drains.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This project will provide professional construction services
to excavate and remove the floor drains and floor cleanouts in the two inspection pit locations
inside the rail shop. The piping system is to be cleaned and inspected via closed-circuit
television ("CCTV") from each of the drain and cleanout excavation locations. The existing
inspection pit floor drains and cleanouts are to be removed and replaced with new integral
floor/trap draing with internal cleanout that bypasses trap.

3.0  PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (*IFB") was posted on the
Authority’s Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Fourteen (14)
interested parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package.
Two (2) bids were received and opened on March 3, 2023 as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid

Cook Paving Construction Co., inc. 5475 ,900.00

Northeast Ohio Trenching Service, Inc. $485,000.00
The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid price. The Tolal Base Bid price of $475,800.00 from Cook Paving & Construction Co, Ing.
is 5, 76% above the Engineer's Estimate of $450,000.00. Cook Paving & Construction Co., Inc.
was determined o be a responsible bidder.
A cost analysis has been performed, and the bid of Cook Paving & Construction Co., inc. has
been determined by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirermnents have been
met. A 15% DBE was established for this procurement. The prime contractor is Cook Paving &
Construction Co., Inc., a certified DBE (African American female-owned) firm fulfilling the DBE
participation goal established for this contract.

50 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,

Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not imited to FTA Grant
QH-2018-027, in an amount not to exceed $475,900.00 ($380,720.00 in federal funds which
represents 80% of the total cost).



Staff Summary & Comments
CRMF Rail Shop Pit Drains 2023-29
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid would leave the Authority in a safety
critical violation within the Occupational Safety and Health Administration safety standards
potentially causing harm to not only the Authority’s employees, but also the Authority’s major
assets and equipment.

80 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the Aprit
4, 2023 Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting. it is recommended that
the bid from Cook Paving & Construction Co., Inc. be accepted and the resolution passed
authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

90 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availabifity of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

_",

s

Mffa‘fﬁm F :?
/C-‘néneral Manager, Chief E@cﬂtive @




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-29

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-9 WITH COOK PAVING &
CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. FOR PROJECT 19.45 ~ CENTRAL RAIL
MAINTENANCE FACILITY RAIL SHOP PIT DRAINS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $475,900.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING &
PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (*Authority”) deems it
necessary to acquire construction services, as required under Project 19.45 - Central Rail
Maintenance Facility Rail Shop Pit Drains (“Project 19.45"); and

WHEREAS, the bid of Cook Paving & Construction Co., Inc., with an office located at
4545 Spring Road, Brooklyn Heights, Ohio 44131, to perform said services was received on
March 3, 2023 in an amount not to exceed $475,800.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Cook
Paving & Construction Co., Inc. to be the lowest responsive hid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE I'T RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Caok Paving & Construction Co., Inc. for Project 19.45, be
and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Cook Paving & Construction Co., Ing, for
Project 18.45.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to FTA Grant
OH-2018-027, in an amount not to exceed $475,900.00 ($380,720.00 in federal funds which
represents 80% of the total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Cook Paving & Construction Co., Inc. will attempt to exceed the 15% minimum
DBE goal assigned to this procurement,

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: April 18, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Forrm

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

100-326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 .
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2023-30
CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF REMANUFACTURED AIR DRYERS, AS Date:
SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF April 13, 2023
ONE YEAR t—
Initiator:
VENDOR; WHITE ASSOQCIATES, INGC. Fleet Management
Departmant

AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $175,500.00

ACTION REQUEST:;
Approval {1 Review/Comment [ Information Only 0 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0
6.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority ("Authority") to enter into a contract for remanufactured air dryers, as specified and as
required, for a period of one year.

DESCRIPTIONAUSTIFICATION: The Authority has an ongoing need to replace defective air
dryers on its bus fleet. Periodic replacement of the air dryers is required to remove moisture
from the air brake operating systems on the coaches.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bid (“IFB") was posted on the Authority’s
Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers., Twenty-three (23) interested
parties downloaded the solicitation. Three (3) responsive bids were received on March 1,
2023.

The bid from White Associates, Inc. has been determined by the Procurement Department to
be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder,

""""""""""""""" Supplier Anticipated Unit Cost Total Contract
Quantity
White Associates, Inc. 180 $975.00 $175,500.00
Muncie 180 $078.05 $176.049.00
The Aftermarket Parts
Co., LLC 180 $1,115.20 $200,736.00

A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority. The bid price is approximately 3% abaove the
budget estimate,

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requiremeants have been
met. A 0% DBE participation goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of
certified DBE firms.

POLICY IMPACT.: Does not apply.
ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleat

Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $175,500.00, for the one-year
period.



Staff Summary & Comments

Remanufactured Air Dryers 202330
Page 2

7.0  ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would impact the timely replacement
of air dryers, which could impact service quality.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of White Associates, Inc. be accepted

and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter
into a contract.

90 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and cerified as appropriate to the
avatlability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

“”“'#/Genaral Manager ChiafrE‘ﬁacuﬂva}Ofﬁcer



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-30

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-11 WITH WHITE ASSOCIATES, INC.
FOR THE FURNISHING OF REMANUFACTURED AIR DRYERS, AS
SPECIFIED AND A5 REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $175,500.00 (GENERAL FUND, FLEET
MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) requires the
replacement of up to one hundred eighty (180) air dryers which remove moisture from the air
brake operating system on the coaches; and

WHEREAS, the bid of White Associates, Inc., located at 43 Hull Street, Cohasset, MA
02025, for the furnishing of remanufactured air dryers, as specified and as required, for a period
of one year, was received on March 1, 2023 at a unit price of $975.00, resulting in a total
contract amount not to exceed $175,500.00: and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of White
Associates, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Autheority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of White Associates, Inc. for the furnishing of remanufactured air
dryers, as specified and as required, for a period of one year, be and the same is hereby
accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with White Associates, Inc. for the furnishing of
remanufactured air dryers, as specified and as required, for & period of one year.

Section 3. That said contract shall be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $175,500.00 for a period of one

year,

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an cobligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual abligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that White Associates, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned
to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: April 18, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.:
CONTRACT. WATERFRONT LINE PLATFORM AND TRACK REPAIRS | 2023-31
Date:
VENDOR; RAILWORKS TRACK SERVICES LLC April 13, 2023
tnitiator: Engineering
AMOUNT: $1,047,832.00 & Project
Development
Dapartment

ACTION REQUEST:
& Approval [ Review/Comment (0 Information Only (3 Other

1.0  PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to enter into a contract to provide construction services for Project 19.68 —
Waterfront Line Platform and Track Repairs.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The work to be performed under this contract includes, but
is not limited to, Waterfront Line track work and platform repairs,

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids ("IFB”) was posted on the
Authority's Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Twenty (20)
interested parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package.
Two (2) bids were received and opened on March 16, 2023. One bid was deemed to be non-
responsive. The responsive bid is as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
Ratiworks Track Services LLC $1,047,832.00

The Basis of Award is the lowes! responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid price. The Total Base Bid price of $1,047,832.00 from Railworks Track Services LLC is
9.15% greater than the Independant Cost Estimate of $960,000.00. Railworks Track Services
LLC was determined to be a responsible bidder,

A price analysis has been performed, and the bid of Railworks Track Services LLC has been
determined by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonabie to the Authority.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: Al Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 13% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Railworks Track Services LLC
has committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of Cook Paving &
Construction Co., Inc. (Aftican American Female-owned) in the amount of $136,219.00 or
13%.

50 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including
but not limited to, Capital Grant OH-2021-050-337, for a total contract amount not to
exceed $1,047,832.00 ($838,265.60 in federal funds, which represents 80% of total
cost).

7.0  ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid, Rejection of this bid will create potential safety risks as a
result of the Waterfront Line falling out of a state of good repair.




Staff Summary & Comments
Waterfront Line Platform and Track Repairs 2623-31

Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the April
4, 2023 Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is recommended that
the bid from Railworks Track Services LL.C be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing
the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

90 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements.

=

,i:,:___,. o . e e = ::‘:"';’ U
f'f e /:A. o r J:»"M;' /"fﬁ*
MG?fe(neral Manager, Chl&ﬁéﬂécutW{Qﬁtﬁer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-31

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-018 WITH RAILWORKS TRACK
SERVICES LLC FOR PRQJECT 19.68 - WATERFRONT LINE PLATFORM
AND TRACK REPAIRS, AS SPECIFIED, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$1,047.832.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING & PROJECT
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Clevetand Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) deems it
necessary to acquire construction services, as specified, under Project 19.68 — Waterfront Line

Platform and Track Repairs; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Railworks Track Services LLC, located at 2101 S, Carpenter 8t.,
Chicage, lllinois 80608, was received on March 16, 2023 in an amount not to exceed
$1.047,832.00: and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Railworks
Track Services LLC to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
accepiance thereof by the Board of Trustees,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE T RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Clevetand Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Railwarks Track Services LLC for Project 19.68 — Waterfront
Line Platform and Track Repairs, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Railworks Track Services LLC for Project
19.68 — Waterfront Line Platform and Track Repairs.

Section 3. That this procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to, Capital
Grant OM-2021-050-337, for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,047,832.00 ($838,265.60
in federal funds, which represents 80% of total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authorily
contingent upan compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees, bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Railworks Track Services LLC will attempt to exceed the 13% minimum DBE goal
assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: Aprit 18, 2023
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regfonal Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No..
2023-32
CONTRACT: TRANSITMASTER SOFTWARE HOSTING SERVICES Date:
April 13, 2023
VENDOR; TRAPEZE SOFTWARE GROUP, INC. DBA VONTAS Inl':i;tor
itiator;
AMOUNT: NTE $760,101.00 FOR A THREE-YEAR PERIOD Information
Technology
Department
ACTION REQUEST:
B Approval [0 Review/Comment O Information Only [ Other
1.0  PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2.0

3.0

4.0

("Autharity”} to enter into a contract to provide implementation and offsite hosting services for
TransitMaster software in order to support the Authority’s disaster recovery program for a
three-year period.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority utilizes TransitMaster software for Computer
Aided Dispatch and Automated Vehicle Locator ("CAD/AVL") applications. The CAD/AVL
applications, along with the Authority's radio system, allow the Authority to track vehicles,
monitor on-time performance, and talkfiext the vehicle operators. The Authority needs to
upgrade the TransitMaster software to the newest available version, which is a cloud-based
software solution. The Authority's TransitMaster software is currently hosted on-site, and the
Authority maintains the servers, operating system, and databases. TransitMaster software and
applications are proprietary products designed exclusively by Trapeze Software Group, Inc.

dba Vontas.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: This non-competitive procurement is exempt from
competition pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 306.43(H)(3). Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba
Vontas developed the Authority's TransitMaster CAD/AVL applications on a proprietary basis
and is the only source available for TransitMaster maintenance and support, upgrades,
modifications, and training services. There are no third-party contractors available to provide
these vital services.

The Procurement Department requested a proposal from Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba
Vontas to host its TransitMaster software solution for a three-year period. The hosting solution
will include implementation, maintenance, and hosting services in negotiated amounts not to
exceed $281,569.00 for year one, $229,772.00 for year two and $238,760.00 for year three for
a total contract amount not to exceed $760,101.00 over the three-year period. The Information
Technology Department reviewed the offer for adherence to the technical requirements. This
negotiated total is approximately 1% below the estimate of $765,000.00 for the three-year

period,

A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined that
the negotiated price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement because it is for the maintenance of
proprietary software, where work is limited and exclusive to the original provider and installer

by agreament,




Staff Summary & Comments

TransitMaster Software Hosting Services

Page 2 2623-32

50  POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the General Fund, Information
Technology Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $760,101.00 over the three-year
period.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would prevent or delay the upgrade
to the newest available version of TransitMaster software and hinder the Authority's disaster
recovery program. This software is vital for the communication and operation of the Authority's
bus and train service.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer of Trapeze Software Group, inc. dba
Vontas be accepted, and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer {o enter into a contract.

8.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and cerified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

-y
7 o

g ey

"':--’ " et ;’:,-* #_J,./-rf e
e v 4,@(5%#&,_ ‘—f:,wéﬁ‘-“:‘;w—\’ ; %HMW
™ General Manager, ChiefExetutide Officer

- -
"’ -Mff -
-




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-32

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-056 WITH TRAPEZE SOFTWARE
GROUP, INC. DBA VONTAS TO PROVIDE TRANSITMASTER SOFTWARE
CLOUD HOSTING SERVICES, INCLUDING IMPLEMENTATION, FOR A
PERIOD OF THREE YEARS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $760,101.00
(GENERAL FUND, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority currently utilizes Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas
(“TransitMaster”) licensed products for its Computer Aided Dispatch and Autornated Vehicle
Locator ("CAD/AVL") applications; and

WHEREAS, the Authority's TransitMaster software is proprietary to Trapeze Software
Group, Inc. dba Vortas, the original provider and installer of this software; and

WHEREAS, the Authority currently hosts, operates, and manages TransitMaster
software applications in-house via an on-premise environment, maintaining the servers,
operating system, and databases; and

WHEREAS, Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas has offered to provide the
Authority a hosted solution for its TransitMaster software applications, including implemeantation;
and

WHEREAS, the offer of Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas, located at 5265
Rockwell Drive NE, Cedar Rapids, lowa 52402, to provide said services at a total price not to
exceed $760,101.00, was agreed upon; and

WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code Section 306 43(H)(3) provides that competition is not
required when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for
telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the
upgrade of such equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as supplied by
the original source or its successors or assigns,; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Trapeze
Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas, as negotiated, to provide a hosted solution for its
TransitMaster software applications, including implementation, to be in the best interest of the
Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regionat Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba Vantas, as negatiated, to
provide a hosted solution for its TransitMaster software applications, including implementation,
for a period of three years be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authiority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas
to provide said services.

Section 3. The contract will be funded through the General Fund, Information
Technology Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $760,101.00 for a three-year
period.



Resolution No. 2023-32
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an abligation of the Authority
contingant upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees, bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Section 5. That the Authority’s Board of Trustees expects that Trapeze Software Group,
Inc. dba Vontas will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: Aprit 18, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



el D61 RiE< TECIEE . ¥ B ZILEL | §  GTFERD9E  § mOOeoT WiEE BIDOLE 'S 4 IOLLTGLZ | 5 GHIaE R § NN WAENES - GANTITY HSVR TEAL

LI T

TR HODIT T AR E'E FELEFT EOTT [E 0] 3120'02T] T op'eas S 3D STIMNS WIHED N SUHE WIS R B EOL13AS
ST - - E - 04T - - . - TNIVEISICIRRITE AL HIALTHEA, - I T TR A
=ooT - - - . %00 . - - - L Ll EAEE]
=601 - . - - x0aT - - - - EL T SRR TELET
w0 - - - - S0 - - - Lo S29¥ 1WHZ12
BTG h ] |GOEBaE: 3 Fats TS5 BEED tssTa| -ty C | TLGE =FT'E0] SLEFIBF WIOINUTELISIN
SHEDT - TEFET - IEFET 5000 - - . - TINREASEY SHL2EETsD THu 203
HpOT - . - - 2000 - - - - SHILFW TEIOE 21915 eG4 0MYNALMR W 3AIH I
HI9E - BBOESS Bid's ITEET B0 . et Y - (A28 WG TUas “19H3034 ;7 1N ITENQINZIN Lanem
L LN sl lsTe 9ET: erEiCEL AT VS EINT HETEL KT0'EE] -3 s aTIse SOKAAAH WL INTSCH IS ORI

THEEO 30 ETAERE BFLE AW SIS TR Ee

LT [EETE] [TE58E] TR FECE T Kb [ETgT] {ise'iet i EAEEL ENIARTE 436 L WrOIENS
ST E £iTES LELTS PETIE =T [CSEE] WSO B L BHI'ET HIHES
=arn - LT LEE'TE Ll 4T - L3TER 39074 fiag ) 3G LTTHLLNI
=110 REF'ED - H BiE'ed TI'se L+ 1] SIS L¥a'sT SSFEL WI'sE TG TELHIY
LETT SXEFB Itoe'asl f=l T4 ATLTRL = . Yo 01T - SHOFSTINANIDS: B5TT ELESES SRl
=ETT IRESBES £y i H ESS'EFST BETLIS xL00 TseEponl s Al 0BT'8: FEEE ST SR N OIS RO 55 T DS 1 S A

EEn e

AT wisa OTTEIL ® FEH RS R ZerRELTS W06 wiwe ESTLOL % TH1IFaE red S 6 SIMNEENS DIREHLNEEAG TS0 LEIS
EEE LR ] DZEETL'P TIAFIES I RESBE ETE BIFL ESZTST TH'TIS'ET PEATISSE KoL ISP A SE

EFRITGATTS S aas

EREF EETF [EITXL] THI'BES'D I0¥e0s HOFL es'oe] Tt rre] FETENE L [T STUYE HITHIEVE TrIOLENS
BRET BT GEFOKT QliEETT GSEELF T AT BEHT EngE ST BBF FEE SRl TTAGM
Bad T [ 3521 [£3:1 1[5 [TE N LOETET LFad] w3 o0l 00 FRE foo i Tad SEFN
F311] b GEd [ g )1 COes xI30 *IAT 55 TAC'RE Ese'vE SOUVITEYS LHIONLS
4 Tt 4 T BOEBE FTESST FAFGICT BIFE Isamer] a9l 9FL'EFY | ERCH SIS LINALISEV
ROEE ReEPT i [ S EEEITE T LREEYr £ %SUE wEES ICELP L =] LI ] 5 SIS HIYS

R ENERTY

BHEOL S R TN YRR FINWIHEA LA 173 IFLDEH % =TT FER T HzNGH HENG
AHIHHRT e ETH AT L B0 ANTHND

TEOT "TE HIEVIN ONY EZOF "TE HIYYW 03GNT 00183d IHE HoE
TNFA TI3NID - HYIA HOdHd D CEEVdIIGD 3RS HEWD 40 150Ey
A EQHINY LISKTEL TeR0R3Y GAYI3AI T 331%340 SHE




kS LR “EeReT +  ORYERFAEL [ EQTSTESE E T RELT TOLS5E §  THOENE'RL % BLOTEFET 5 QN THINET - J3AI30TH HEWD TWE0 L

TARTITETS N VOTTRALS T ATE

ETR HES bR Toe'edt aTELER T FZIETTS] X007 150 STF (to¥Tos IobHas TIE 15 HELD 40 STIHRGS SEIHLD N TIMINISHAENI2E ILOIeS
¥ - B - B ) E - - - LMIF2SHRRAEIH 3 LD NIZLTIOHN - SRR 140D
%030 - - - . %000 - - - . dHY TPHIna:
=070 - - - - #0510 - - - - WHEIHT Ty
=00 - - - - =050 - - - - 17 S3H%D THHI032
LT LAt inrsaazl 155'BET LE5SEE EEED 1805 E] Mes'egd TATENI et L0l S0aRN TS
RESO - EEREL TE¥ET . 200 - - - - FRIYLASTY DRAYY140 TeHIma
X000 - - - =000 . - IHIE: T30 “I0NLS T I04] TN LS SRLHIATE:
560 - 3] Lh ] GoagaL E=-T . oo oot - 0T [HSLERE 19000 " 2LWLE T3] LUIWISIN BT ENYHD
=0 [t ] Ha 1] ELERY 0L BIFT ATl DETLE EITLSk o] SENMFe 7L BNV OB SRS

I 30 SENOT URS ONF S3m SR

PP PR - WCILTIOT TTAT UL TTOE

XERT =T Teed sl EFTBIET GOLTSTT 1) TR ToBsgeE) TEOTEL TEFaTE FINZATY B0 WIS
=FED [T LEETE] DEFELT ea0iE H500 [EXTET] RETHH SHIET EIET 43HLO
=80 HISEE TS PLE'EGT O OSE 870 %0E0S ast'sy CE1SL A0S MO S5IHZERE
=1t - TTrse o'y 0ok EEED IG5 FiTyd tosE i EL et TR CIFTE
HEZD [HEEEE SEaeHTI BTLIHT EZERE L - Lo TE} - De0'id SHOISSIKING D SETT SEHGIH ShET
*ET'T 1352 ezl SEEDFES] BEZ'LEE Ter1ss't SECD L] Fizra~ 7 EEE B SHOSSSIMHRE SRS TR SN SN G

EqLEs e

XEFLE w5 SIEF00'T ) T ®bTeh IS ESFREET ¥EH 35 5T TEORE b SRBENTS SELLVHISD 1010390
RBELE SASF SEFOTE [T L9EEET 5% X 53 EOFEETS TEEART 5T TEFIIFL 41 350 F 5T19S

TTATED DXL FH s

et [ETTE] [EEERSE] [T 9779 ®OKL {szeeth [ETEE BELEETT ST S0 HEINESSYE TEDISAS
B 5T E “GoEEel [EETE (LI ETT [EFaTH] TESREY T EEGH LI TREOR
REFD 15L05T] (EErSE] [legr] TN DG BIFD |s£0erael |ooatowrt CIEraTE DEQIGY S5edN
Y] ST e | rese; aon'rs OCTTIT Efa] - ESLRE FSLTE an0ar SEVIIER L ANZINES
T %056} {3ES0BL; THICT DOG'006'S 14 fusitwl lz5e's) FAFBLL 200'e69 ATHS L 55vd
ST FAYST LiasE 5 LB $  oooor'c 5  HSFE EL 1] Be'sE 5 £9r9e§ 3 aegoca 5 IR HED

BT T o]

TOA0L 35 % AR O &L JECTETTTN THLL 30 % EETTTTRE) TINUTEYA ELI3CHY HEBOW
JLE e 20T erez ENTHHFD I -] J=c ]

EE0T "TE #0EWIN G0N OGTERd IHE Hod
G TYHINGED - JIHANE OF EEHFaNDT 03AETE KEYD 30 JH06T
ALFHOELNY ESHEHL VoD T ONFEATIS ¥IEEIYD 364




Pl
%SED
%SE 0
EE 0
pACeR|
%003
WO0'E
WEE'E
w00 G
W00s
Yebri'h
TFl'G
Ykl
AT
%OE¥
%00%
UG
WEEE
WO0E
%00E
YeELL
Ybl's

B ¥

T%riE
%LE'0

LA ]

%EE'0
E

YodL'E

kLG
WHEE
WL T
WEED
%rlS
WSS
%EEE
%e0g
oL
%iS0
WEED
BGET0
%E8°Z
WBEE

O3, ALALYN  ESTUILNE
JDVEIAY Ol SAvd  Q3aNusoY
HSOVEaay

0661
Dot

(3¢5
BES
09z
OF6
BEB
EEL
BEB
2124
leg
¥
A3
(3%
'0L
Bid

— T o T

458
LB
5L

g¥s
SEE

€
-

LET'PSC LY LGE'IEL'ObLYE
of GIGERE £
0% £ZZPESS E
0% C0F'GEFS E
£ee'es OOO000'0ES SEOE
£E2°028 oR008'sE  S80L
g e 005'000'sS LEL
ZE0'IEL 0oo00a'sE S0l
foo'aps 005008 ¥S oes
ALE'ZIS DOGD00'5E 0L
SZLTES DOS'BEF' LS PREL
BLLPPE D76 140'28 o0l
LO5'FES CHR'GEL 1L 158
BEE'SLES DI DOC'sE  S80L
ETTLE 000000'ss  SEOL
£EE'95FL gOo'eon'sLS  Seol
LPEEGLE BLG'GEAFL 692
FE0'62LS O00'000'GLS S5O
890°91LE D1L°2668'6  £80L
tS¥'sE GZT'EEs'rE  0BOL
L5E'0rE CZL'PrE' S ges
0% 08Z' LBZ'EES L
brE LELS
o8 yEZ'Ipid L
4 IZEYES L
as ¥99'E92'9%
[ BIG'ES L
as 995 65 CE L
£18052% TrO'SRL'TSS
[%:3 OLL'BBE'SLE L
s LBL'FES '
as SETFIES +
0% £90's5% :
0% E2F'600'8%
BCEGELIS oo0'e0n'ss  se0l
FOZT0LS IBRIOL'AS  SEOL
05684 o00'g00'es  Sel
0F'9S CO0'0G0'ES SB0L
S3E'4LS COO'000'EE SBML
8:0'1e OOSAGSYS  SBOL
0% igl'izeg L
0% dE1Taetas
0% ATLTHE9S L
WAIDNRId  SAVQ
WiGL T

MNvE ATy ©°

HMNYE AN
dIIMEANYE AT
SMYICOIN 1341S
SNYIODIN 13455

S3ILIENT3AS J01TTH
SNYIOTIN 1341ES
S3ILIEN23S d01TIH
S3LHAIFS J0TTIH
SNVIOOH 13dELS
SO0 134ELS
SIICTIN 13HLES
SNVIODHN 134LS
SAYICTIN 124ELS
SOYICSIN 134LLS
S3ILHNS33S d0171IH
SNVYIOSIN 134HES
SNYICOIN T30S
SMICSIN T1341LS
SNYIOOIN 1341LS
CIHG H0 3EYES

GIHO 40 3EVES
JAIMEHNYE AT

MNYE AT
OIHC 40 J1VES

HNYE ATM
HMYE NOLOMNEENAH
HNTYH Shd
HNYE AIH
OIHO 40 31VLS
SO0 134118
SO 134118
SOYICN I341LS
SMWTODIN 334ILE
SWI00IN 134118
SARO0DIN T33LS
AR AT

HNYE MOLONILNAN
BOLENLLLENE

F 90D o3 ATM-MISYE HOLYD

HOIiNYHD

HIE AID-HIEWIR 1900

B1H4
BiHd
DA
B34
NIHL
HS
HETHI
gHHE
ETHS
154
g1Hd
g1HS

d3 HNVEONYT H3AVE

HH4
ETHS
8744
gH

OHO ¥Y1S-HOLYW T¥O0T

OIHG Yvls
HI3 ATIH

HOd AZH
QIHG ¥vis

g23 ATFH

LNNOJDV WYL ST TS
ARNGOOY AQDLSND INd
QNN AUALESY IZA0 TN

OIHQ Yvis
gTH4
g1Hd
d1H4
g1HA
g1H4
84

LAWEN AT LO0Y INYHD S

A3HBEYIN AINCIN
ANZNNYLISH

£20Z "L HOYVIN 4O SY

SININLSIANI AENSYIHL S0 AYCLINIAN

STO2fLF CEDENEE
EZOLLY  EEOTNER
EE0ZMLIY EEOTLER
YZOEMLEIE  CEOEIAEE
SECE/HE EL0EM%E
SE0LRLIE CEOTIBTIT
SEOEMLLLY  EZOEIE
GEOTMLE EZOTIALE
PEQTISWEE  EZ0ZILEE
SEOZ/BEMOL  TETOZ/RZT/OL
SEOSHEIOL  EE0ZLEOL
CIOLfPir  TEUEIEOL
SEOLFIIOL  EE0ZZinL
SEQEHES  EEOEMOES
EAN AL A S A
EE0ZIPEr  LEOEMEIL
STOZiLLrs LE0EiEM
SEOZFERS  EEDEIvES
SE0ZMEE ZE0EHLAE
FEOZIEEIS  ZEUE/BZIE
EE0THP EEDEAICE

OGN HOLYW Te D07 TvLOL

NS HOLYN T30

ONNd LNFRITHECING AT IVEDLE

EEOErWe  EEOZNERE
E20Ei EEOZ/EE

ESOTF EE0Z/LERE
E20EHP  EEOELLE

EEOC/Er  EZOC/ESE
BE0ZfEP EEOE/LEE
EEQESLF ETOZILEE
EEDE/ILF  EEOELLE
EEOL/EF  EZOZILESE
SEOLVTOL  ZZ0ENRED
SEOLiLEI3 ZEOENLEG
SZOTTENr  TOOTITEv
STUTIEN ZE02iLEr)
YEOTIOES  1Z0CI0EE
FEQES LI LEOEIHE
EEDEAF  EEDZILEE

ONMd ENIWEDHOINZ A
ONId JINPHTSNI TVI0L

AN ZONYENSNI

ONAE TedINID THLOL

ONMA TYdINID

ONIIF INIWIHIELTY ONOE TVL0L

EEDE/HY  BZOEMIEE

31vQ AL¥a
ALBNLYI ISYHOuN

ALIHCHINY LISNVHL TYNOISIY GNYIIAZ O ¥31v3Ho

QNMA ENIWIRI1TY NG
amnd



Yil¥
BEZF
Y¥ie
%560
%005
%009
Wll'G
%od's
%EL T
PR
FoBEG
W%LES
EriAaRs
W5Ls
%15S
%L
E AR
FL
GEE
%S0
Eolt
WMSLE
S
WSl
WO E
HeE
e
GuSlE

BTk
HFED
HEED
SlE 0
BER0
Gald L
YaSRE
HETE
%550

HEL'S
%akls
SHSED

raF

oE01
LERRNES

5137
0%
B
EEE
BEF
FECE
Gig
G55
Zig

FaL
L
LA
GaF
EFE

3
3

LBZ'BTLES  £8S'LFL'vECS

oZo'Des'Ls
i
0%
FL-Th" 4
289 1FE
{80'grE
Fey'TES
HBF'ETE
LE5'SES
ogz'oet
EED'ILES
£51'98
CL2'E5E
SEB'TIS
£E4'PLY
I94'BELY
£00'15e
BLLISS
Bii'FLE
¥ES'SLLE
FOS'L21E
BOE'L21%
FPE'E0LE
F9S'ECig
0SZ'L9%
£05'52%
ZES'TS

991 '¥FiS
¥oas
LZT'ES
0BS'LLS
Q08'2ES
062528
POCECS
FEY'EGS
g

035
05
0%

QA ALBSENLVIN LSIUTIMNE
JDVH3AY OLSAVA  a3anyosoy

FOVHAAY

Zas'sLz'esLg

[T ELV BES L
Za0'oaLs L
0OG'O00'SE  CB0L
ooo'con'sls  Seal
ooo'son'als 1es
0 000'5E 1Ef
0oe00s'ss 1B
083000 e 859
0OO'000'GES OEs
Q20°000 5% £00E
285'8E6S LLE
0oo'0an sy S50
OSE'6FLFE  ZOOL
IOFSEE TS SEDE
0an'0Goss LGS
LE¥'SER"PE £62
QoO'ONTSE $603
SRIFEE'PE  GBOL
oo0'OG0'SE £Og
CO0'Ra0'sE BZL
o00'co0'sE a0l
S5L0'SERTPS (FieF
oO0'0o0'sS Ge01
cOD'oo0SS G504
PEE'GLEFE 0D
SOE LFE S Qi

(1]:3: B b R

054 '66kFL SEOL
GO0'oD0'ZE GeOL
COD'COD'ES SEL
oOD'eO0'ss ge0
SIE'SPE'LS  ob
LE'aHR 1S £i5
6L 'FEEFS £ig

ZBLIES i
FLEPFELE
TBZ'OPE1LS

TED'PS i

IVAEIMIES  SAYQ

Witl R

gie ¢ afeg

CHHG 0 3EVIS
HNYH AJM
SNVICOEN 134ELES
STYICOH 13408
SHILIENI3E JOLTIIH

SAILENI3E 017N
SAYICOIN 133EES
FALIHN23E J0177IH
SALLIHND3S dOLTIIH
SNYICOIN "134is
SNYI0N 134448
SNYION 134118
SNYICOIN 1341s
SMYI0N 13418
SALLNDAS dOLTIEH
SALLEADAS dOLTHR
SMWI0DIN 133148
SNYIOTIN 13318
SILLEENIAS dOLTHH
SILLEHNI3S dOLTHH
SMYT0JIN 134lLs
SHLMNI3S JCLTHA
SMI0JIN 3341LE
S TOJIN 334118
SHLMNTES 0L TS
STLIENDIS SOLTHN

SOVTOMN 3341LE
SAYTODMN 1341LS
SAYTODIN 334ILS
SI03N 1341LS
SAICDIN T3S
SAYI0MN 134ILS
SILHNIIS 401 THH
HHYE ATM

QIR0 20 31YLS
Hiwe ADH

HOILO LIS

OHHC ¥ LS
HI3 ATH
arH4

Ik
TS

R R
i
T
8H4
[EE]
844
IWIHA
SWIHA
J5 0A AHASYIHL SN
25 WSl gk
29 W08 WNA
45 Wol gTHS
49 way 344
gH4
gH4
gH4
d3 MNVIAONYT HIAvE
44
27TH4
J10w AHNSYILE SN
J10KN ANSY3adL sn

TN
B34
g1THd
g1H4
g1H4
g1H4
JA0H AMASYIHE SN
HI3 AT

QIHO Uvis
HO3 AT

INIWNULSNE

€202 'LT HOHYIN 40 SY

SININLISIANI AYNSVIHL 40 AHOLNIANI
ALIHOHLNY LISNVHI TYNCID3Y ANYIIAT]D ¥31V3NS

EEQT/Y
E20Z/ET
SC0CiiEE
BEOTAE
SEUEIBEE

SEOEREE
GIOTILEM
FEQZHIEEE
GEQE/CIE
SEOELLILE
FEOEISED
BEOTILES
GEOEIBTILE
PEOESLIL L
FEGT/HLE
EECERLS
BEOTTG
FEOTBITL
YEQLIBEI
LTOLE/8
S2DEOES
EEQEHE
GEOEIGEIT
SZOEHF LY
LETOLOEEL
EEQZICEIY

FEOTHE
FEQEISTE
FEOZIGESG
FEDEDED
PEOEIBERE
PEOZIGES
PEOZIOESY
EEOE/LIF

EEOZ It
EEOCILTY

3Lva

ALMALYW ISYHIUHNL

EZgEiee
ESOEILER
EE0ELLERE
(XA

ET0CREL

tZ0ZIREL
EEOLILET
EZOLHTIE
EZOTFEL
EE0ELLSE
EZOEIELE
prAsrdyrah
ZEGLees L E
FEFEIS LIRS
ORISR
SETOCILTIE
CEOTIETIG
1ZoEMBIEE
ZZ0EIESE
CTOLGER
ECOLIGErE
CTDEMTIL
EE0EEn
SThEv Lt
LTOLELE
Farti il

LEQESHIE
FEOZIGF
+EDEfGER
LE0Zieers
LTOCIREE
ZEO0ZIREE
FANEATALY
SZOE/LEE

EEZ0ZILEE
LE0Z/LEE

ILVC

SONANZ TV TY10L

g IANIEIY TRIGL

GHNNS IAE3ISIH

WA TVLISYD Yy TVioL

ANMS TP EIdYS vl

OIS NOISNDS TYLIOL

ONAZ NOISNIe
a4



169° 28T PainbEy RISy 195 AJLILOR

J2LT88'se
FOERTEIE Y I s

{£Z0z fog SpISY 186) asueley JuaLnD

O0ase'LiF'eS | 0O'GIE'0rE'8S | OO'0O0'0LD IS oosis'oees I 5I6'0E68 o ns OO SLE°DERS LONRR'SLE i Spuog B0

00005716574 G0 054 '008" COO00'050" 00 GsL 052 0054 '06% 10 oonssose 00 00R'0ED'0L  OS0T 980 RS XBL SBES-GL0OZ sausg

00 C0s SRS L o00sLeEyY 1 O00C0'0se’: D008 QO0SLELL 0010 OC0GL L COOGD'01B'D 2202 99 Wy XEj S3|ES-GLOZ saueg

00°06s 965 + OO GLE'BE0'Y QnosD'ans s D0°GLE95E Q0 GLL'BEE oG U0 G958 DOCDO'SES'SY  BE0T 280 AEY XBE SBBS-GLOZ SRS

G 00ERZE' L 0OO0L'EEL"L COoco'0EY': 00G0L B a0 0G0 0GC 007003601 QUOo0'OPR's  SI0E 0Rg hald X2 SIBS-YFLQZ SBlES
EZOT E20E/LIEL £L0TIHTL ECOTHIT L £Z021/9 BSOS £Z0TAS LTRTIITE eq spuag

wawaunbay | puswaiynbay egeiey jaeied fuaEad nbayy jaeley jagelied Gujpusising AQunew

1433 g0, AMIIE WE] fedaulid IS3IDGLIE BTAIBG 18 red|auy ysasalu) jediouwg [230] 2Ly

£Z0Z "1 HOMVIN JO SY
SNLYLS ONY ZINCIHDS IDINYIS 183a
ALMOHLOY LISNVYL TYNOIDTE GNYI3ATTD HIALYIHD



%L 0
WBEE

Sil'F
%970
%iBE
HHLC
Bl T
bt E
- TANE
YalG0
kR
%GlL0
Wi09
Yebd0
#UEA

13MEVIN OHVOINYLS JOVHISAY

TREDD
Bail') kil
HES'E S08'E
WiS'E Sk e
WE0E %lB'E
%35 T %BI'E
B2 W0ET
YeFD1 %S0T
(32 T Yo'}
%880 %S0
%ESC pH
A %REPD
HEC0 YW%SED
%810 WBL D
#4d73FA gi3iA

EAA

VER'FLOOE

914'9FL18
£i9'Loes
£04'Z0E"1Y
oFZ'enss
£51'851%
£TE'erst
£SE'95ES
S50'ERTE
805601 E
FBE'FOS
OFE'L¥S
f98'ic%
EDEEE]
LS ING

EZL'CEE'GHES

T ROy'0LES
¥1i9P0'60ES
PoR'BPL'GOES
AR IPE'ESES
S16'L89'05ES
SER'RCYELES
£OL'5/5'85E%
BFE'S0G'IPES
08 /58 'BR2S
058'5:2'092%
964 '0LF00ES
TG 'pPS'oges
ERCCRLE
IOVHIAY

%050 WBS0-
Wk WESF
E Ylbi¥
SREFF %REBS¥
%bLF W9z ¥

# O #O03HA

LHWAINGN QEVONYLS

plaLs, ABg L pung AsUop Ansest| g SIENDS IS 18HIE

%HEBE

%y
%YIB'E
%ELE
(sg=17N
IDVHIAY
EZ0Z

£20Z 1€ HOWVIN HONOWHL 3LV OL HvaA
JONVINHOJH3d INSWLSIANI 20 AHYIWINNS

ALHOHINY LISNYEL TYNCIOZN GNVIEATTIO H31v3ds

'Sig Aunseal | yjuow g 10) SPIiA JUB[BANDS Lodnos afeiase Bumop #

X3ONE (H3ANN) HIAO0 SOIFIA ISVYIAY Y1y

£0C'/85'c%

LZ2ErF LS
6TE'SE0' LS
¥ '8R0'LS
J3anyvz
I8N

SFSIGLGIE

gi5'L6EBLES
EET'ZITELES
988 009 £28%
FONYIvE
20VHIAY

ALV0 OF WW3A

H39W=3330

HIFNIAOHN

HJ380 120

H49W3 1438

L5nsiny

ATHOIE

NN

AT

Tidd¥

HIHYI

AdYIHa3S

AYRINGE
HINOW



STEES

6 LEL4E
EECiog
{963
£4£'609%

£6'928't$
05 8¥6'95%
PRy LTS
YREBF LES

iETLEE'TES
LS¥LE'E0TS
ELOSL'ELS
£E653
S2048'1T8
00052'e$
£9eo0'ed
BLL9L s
rOS¥s

Qg L9278
L4'888'ZYS
02'9.8'0l%
EEAS TR

£ i0 | =fey

2190 Ol HY3A €202
IL¥Q Ol ¥¥3IA £202

£202 HOHYI

193 Ol HY3IA 2208
2193 01 UYL EE0T

PAA L

31¥3 Ol Uv3A 2202
313 01 4¥3 A E20E

EZ0T HOHVI

iV O HVIA 2202
V0 OL YYIA E20E

€202 HOUYN

£T0T HOUYI
{SISVE HSYD) SONINMYI ININLSIANI NO 180434
ALIMOHLAY LISNVHL TYNOIDEH ANYIIAZ IO HILYIHD

QHOHY LS
LNAODIV 433MMS HNYE A3
QNM= INFWSOHCING MY

QIHOUYLS
ONMNd ISNTENSNE

ANMOSTY d33AMS MNYE A LNNOOOY INVHOHIW
ENNOIY AGOLSND ONd

gId44

ANAQSOY d3IMS HNYE A3

QIHOHY LS

LNNOOOY XYLE SATVS-NOLONIINNAH

ONNd TVYENSD

LY ASNOW NOLDNIANDH
QM ANIANTHELTE AONCE



VL LIELLS
0Z'E8E'S¥S
88'910'6¢%
837853

0008T FLS
052EZE FL S
05481 '9LS

ELZS

QF 558
ZL'6LS
FANES

BS8YGS
EEZEL'PIS
FIEFTGS
0E92s
LrgLZ'ss

80°8.Z'¥18
£OEES LIRS
OB'GE6 /EES
65GELE
00'005'204%
OO OFLGES
00'05L"av8
L2097'¢01s

£lo z sbed

3LYQ Ol ¥v3A 20T
SL90 Ol HY3IA £20T
€202 HOWI

i3 01 HYIA ZERE
3LV O1 Hy3A £202
EC0Z HOMYW

H1%0 O1 Uv3A 2202
J1Wd O WA €202
EEDZ HOWWIN

iV OF HY3A E202
SIW0 OL Wv3A £20T
£208 HOdwl

€202 HOUVYIN
{SISva HSYO}! SONINYYI INIWLSIANI NO LHO4TY
ALIBOHLNY LISNVHL TWNOIDIY ANVIIAID Y¥IALYIND

NGO J3HMS HNYE A3
giH4
87+
g1H4

GNNA TYLIdYD Y1Y

L3HYVYIN ASNOWE MNYE AZH
LNAOJOV ALIALLOY B3A0TdINZ

ANNO3IOY 433MS HNvE AT
QIHOYY LS
ANA- NOISNId

LNACIOV d33MS MNYE ATM
gd1Hd
8IHL
8044

HOLYIN TWO0T-0IR0YYLS
AN HOLYI T¥207



%ERE
9PG'15.'GLES

OpZ i55'ES
LBZ'6Z1'ES
{eg2'9s5'L8)

69Z'700'2S
Aiva o4
HVYIA T20Z

228262024
09 85Z°PO0°ES
69°850'959%

BLFEE'OLS
PESSL 2R
08'980'c6L 4
LLG/GE
00'005'L0L%
Si'iB5'ceg

£ jo ¢ sfiey

Wl ¥
35 LBE'RILS
L2 st LE

\BZ'BZLEE
{BlLL'zge'zel

8500698
HOYYW

A1vd OL UY3A TI0E
A1¥0 Q1 H¥HA 2202
EZ0Z HOHVYIN

LV 0L dv3aA 2202
19 O 8vdA £208
EC0Z HOYYIN

EC0Z HOYYIN

SINIWISIANI MO O13IA FOVHIAY

{1S00) IONYIVE LNSWLSIANI 3OVHIAY

O3INYYE IWOONT LSIHILNI
SININS

ONINNIDSE

SLSIHIENI J3NEI0Y

{SISvE HSVD) 03AIZ03Y LSTUIINI

SANML TV 1YL0L

INNOODY d33MS MNYE ATN
g7H4

OIHOHYLS

0N SAY3ISTY

{S1ISvd HSVYD) SONINMYI INIWLSIANI N 1¥80d3y
ALIHORLOY LISNYHL TYNOIDIY ONYIIAZTD HIALYIND



it
DEL

ALTHnivig
ADYHIAY

BikF
%EB8E
%ELE
2550
YebtlS
%580
W%SFE
A=A
ADVHIAY

%00°031
YbreL
%tSe
Ybo¥
W%OE'LL
%l
%0LE
Lol

40 LN33¥dd

S00'56.°FEES
000'D0Y ZEZS
0oouon'oLs
EBLPLE LIS
BGLTLOV'99%
LZ2'P2%
LT8'PE0'8E
ANNOWY
3074

£85'1¥i'vRes
S8Z'L65'13T3
BED'DLL S
E8L¥L8'LLS
8G1'19v'00%
122'v2s
£80'080'8%
TYdiahRd

£20Z ‘1€ HOYYIN SY

OI02L80d LNFWLSTANI 40 NOILISOJNOD

G OJHO0 JUALASHAL [BI0L
STULNISG JUSWLIBADD 'S
Jaded Brolewaon
URCOSY 31BN IpssD) sbulseg
oo JE1S
WNosoy deemg Hueg Asy
IURCDDY 1S%IBRN ASLIo]
HIBWInsH;



“UORERUOA] [SUSTHPPE 10
08-0T0T "0N UDIINOS3Y S33INEL JO P1L0g PUE YZH JMPA30L] SABRISIULLPY “[AIHoG [ane) L} ALDiay JISUEL jUaiSoy PuB(BAS|] JRIERID 31U} Jo SunneinSay PUE S3INY PIIPC BUI 0 959 Jaidey] ol 538 3seR|d

TROZ "2E YEW PRLEp ASUul JURIE Y 0 uoiu|dn ALOSIARY JEeISUOISSILICT ST TILD
BOrITOT SGLUIAK BoIU O VOSSO ST 4D
OI0Z "5 ARl Patep [Saleyw 38 - WD) p2opusg Bur liays 03 Uity oSy JElS UOrss e S9113 BILG
THZTISNI-EDOE SAGLUrK ORIEC R0t ARSI 51 Olkn
(3} PR {Q}e0 2401 Swonaas SpoJ paskmay om0
HHM BILEOWOD U 34 O SEENPLAEPY] 3|QedEe Jof papinede TS S| UDITELUOL S|

‘ZLON
28pay |ang JUBg SLLeH GIME
iensiday puog UD{33 IO A M3 JO Yoy
FIARESDNUT L0 S
JREENUBPU
JURCIMY X2 SHIES PUE JUSMUSIIEY peoy yueg ucaSuUng
JENAZIY MEFIEY DHYL gL
PHEZ 107 PUE JLURCAY [BIPOISMD 3ueg INd
saaes Fuiueg pen yueg hay

GRSUONEEL JO BNEN CORNYISY] [RNUEUL/YuRg

. €202 LE yaiBi J0 5
sdiysuoyERy [BRuRLL pue Suyueg
Auooy 3isuesy [peoriay pueisas ealy



